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      June 1, 2012 

Honorable Phil Mendelson 
Chairman 
Metropolitan Washington  
Air Quality Committee (MWAQC) 
777 North Capitol Street, NE, #300 
Washington, DC  20002 
 
Dear Chairman Mendelson: 
 
 At its March 21, 2012 meeting, the National Capital Region Transportation Planning Board (TPB) 
approved a letter to MWAQC recommending the incorporation of safety margins of 20 percent and 30 
percent into out-year mobile emissions budgets for 2017 and 2025 respectively in a PM2.5 maintenance 
plan under development by MWAQC.  In this letter, TPB staff is providing additional information in 
support of the TPB’s March 21 recommendation. 

 
  If MWAQC proceeds with the development of a PM2.5 maintenance plan for the Washington 

region, mobile emissions budgets will need to be developed for the out-years of 2017 and 2025 for both 
precursor  NOx and primary PM2.5.  EPA conformity regulations require that  these budgets  be based 
on current estimates of those emissions for 2017 and 2025 using the latest assumptions about future 
transportation and land use for the region, as well as the age and composition of the region’s vehicle 
fleet and the parameters and procedures incorporated into the model currently mandated by EPA for 
estimating motor vehicle emissions.  Once set, these budgets will be used, perhaps for many years, for 
determining the conformity of the TPB’s plans and programs with the requirements of the Clean Air Act 
of 1990, as amended.  The key issue of concern to the TPB is that future emissions estimates that the 
TPB will be required to develop to demonstrate conformity for these out-years could be impacted 
significantly by changes in the composition and age of the region’s vehicle fleet, as well as by revisions 
to EPA’s emissions estimation model (currently “MOVES 2010a”), both of which are external inputs to 
the planning process administered by the TPB. 

 
 

The potential impact of changes in the vehicle fleet 
 

 TPB staff is providing as an attachment to this letter, and as a supplement to the TPB’s March 21 
letter, detailed results of a sensitivity test designed to assess the potential impact of changes in the mix 
and age of the vehicle fleet.  As discussed later, these results form part of the rationale for the TPB’s 
recommendation of safety margins of 20 percent and 30 percent for 2017 and 2025 respectively. 
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The TPB has collected and analyzed Vehicle Identification Number (VIN) data for all vehicles 
registered in the Washington region for three distinct points in time in 2005, 2008, and 2011.  Snapshots 
of the VIN data were taken on July 1 of each of these years, and it is anticipated that similar snapshots 
will be taken each July 1 at three year intervals into the future: 2014, 2017, 2020, and so on. 

 
 Since the TPB has VIN data for 2005, 2008, and 2011, it has been possible for TPB staff to 
estimate precursor NOx and primary PM2.5 fine particulate emissions for 2017 and 2025 for different 
vehicle fleet mix and age assumptions.  Specifically, TPB staff calculated these emissions with the most 
recent 2011 VIN data (already programmed for use in the PM2.5 maintenance SIP), and also with the 
2005 VIN data.  As documented in the attached Power Point presentation, significant differences were 
found in the emissions levels using the two different years of VIN data.  For 2017, precursor NOx and 
primary PM 2.5 emissions were found to be higher by 25 percent and 22 percent respectively with 2011 
VIN data than with 2005 VIN data, due largely to aging of the fleet between 2005 and 2011.  For 2025, 
the differences were found to be 8 percent and 11 percent respectively.  Breakdowns by vehicle type 
found that these differences were due predominately to light commercial trucks, buses and heavy duty 
trucks. For precursor NOx only 41 percent of the difference in 2017 and 21 percent in 2025 was due to  
passenger vehicles.  The corresponding percentages for primary PM2.5 were 19 percent and 40 percent 
respectively. 

 
 The levels of emissions reductions that will actually be achieved in 2017 and 2025 will be highly 
dependent on continued steady turnover of not only passenger vehicles, but also light commercial 
trucks, buses and heavy duty trucks.  If the turnover rates are slower than currently projected, the 
anticipated reductions will not be achieved.  Such slower turnover rates could result in revised precursor  
NOx and primary PM2.5 projections that exceed the TPB staff projections currently being considered by 
MWAQC for use in setting mobile emissions budgets for 2017 and 2025.  It is to allow for the possibility 
of such slower turnover rates, as well as possible changes in EPA’s mandated emissions model, that the 
TPB has recommended the incorporation of safety margins in mobile emissions budgets for 2017 and 
2025. 
 
Summary 

 
 The specific safety margins recommended by the TPB in its March 21 letter to MWAQC, 20 
percent for 2017 and 30 percent for 2025, are based in part on the VIN data assessment reported above, 
and in part on previous experience with changes in EPA’s mandated emissions estimating procedures, 
which have typically resulted in significantly higher emissions estimates from the same set of local 
inputs.  While there is no basis at this time for predicting the impact of future changes in EPA’s 
emissions estimating procedures, the likelihood of such changes occurring increases as time goes on; 
hence the significantly higher safety margins recommended for 2025 than for 2017. 
 
 Three charts that were provided in the attachment to the TPB’s March 21 letter are provided 
again in the PowerPoint attached to this letter.  First, page 10 shows that primary PM2.5 emissions 
currently projected for 2040 are 2.1 percent higher than projected for 2025, so that conformity could 
not currently be demonstrated for 2040 if the 2025 mobile emissions budget were set at the 2025 
projected level.  Second, pages 11 and 12 show that even with the safety margins recommended by the 
TPB, total emissions from all sources are significantly below the levels required for a PM2.5 maintenance 
plan. 
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 TPB staff is transmitting with this letter a set of detailed results of the VIN data assessment 
reported above.  The letter and the supporting data tables are being provided to help inform ongoing 
MWAQC deliberations about the development of a PM2.5 maintenance plan, and the implications of 
such a plan for the TPB’s ability to meet air quality conformity requirements for future updates to the 
region’s transportation plans and programs. 

 
     Sincerely, 

     
  Ronald F. Kirby 

     Director, Department of 
Transportation Planning  

 


